
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLOE_IDA
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of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a], and the FTC’s Trade Regulation Rule entitled

"Dise]osure Requirements and YrohFoitions Concerning Franchising and Business Opportunity

Ventures" ("Erranchise Rule" or "Rule"), 16 C.F.R. Part 436.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This Coud has subject matter jurisdimion over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C.

§§ 1331, 1337(a), 1345, and 1355, and 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(m)(1)(A), 53(b), 56(a), and 

action arises under 15 U.S.C. § 45(a).

3. Venue in the United States District Court for the Southern Distric~ of Florida is

proper under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b) - (c) and 1395(a), and 15 U.S.C. § 

DEFENDANTS

4. Defendant Gold Leaf Distribution, Co. ("Gold Leaf’), a Florida corporation with

its principal place of business at 15850 SW 106th Terrace, Miami, Florida, promotes and sells

cigax distribut~ship business ventuxes. Gold Leaf transacts or has transacted business in the

Southern District of Florida.

5. Defendant Luz Amporo Ugarte, aP~,Ja Luz Ugarte, is an officer and director of

Gold Leaf Ln connection with the matters alleged herein, she resides or has transacted business

in the Southern Districl of Florida. At all times material to this complaint, acting alone or in

concert with others, she has formulated, directed, controlled, or participated in the acts and

practices of 
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complaint, acting alone or in concert with others, he has formulated, directed, controlled, or

participated in the acts and practices of the corporate defendant, including the acts and practices

set forth in this complaint.

COMMERCE

7, At all times relevmat to this complaint, the defendants have maintained a

substantial course of trade in the offering for sale and sale of cigar distributorship business

venlures, in or affecting commerce, as "commeave" is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 15

U.S.C. § 44.

THE DEFENDANTS’ BUSINESS PRACTICES

8. The defendants offer and sell cigar distributorship business ventures to

prospective purchasers. The defendants promote their business ventures through newspaper

classified advertisements. In their advertisements, defendants urge consumers to call a toll-free

telephone number to learn more about defendants’ opportunity.

9. Consumers who call the defendants’ toll-fi’ee telephone number are co~mected to

defendants, or their employees or agents, who make representations about the earnings potential

of the business venture. For example, the defendants or their employees or agents have

represented that defendants’ business ventures may yield a monthly net income of approxknaately

$6,000.

] 0. The defendants failed to provide prospective business venture pro-chasers with an

earnings claim document containing information substantiating their earnings’claim, failed to

have a reasonable basis for the earnings claims at the time that they were made, and/or failed to

disclose that materials, which constitute a reasonable basis for the claims, are available.



11.

document.

12.

The defendants do not provide potential purchasers with a basic disclosure

TIlE FRANCHISE RULE

The business ventures sold by the defendants are franchises, 
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makes, 16 C.F.R. § 436.1C0) and (c); 

(d) clearly and conspicuously disclose, in immediate conjunction with any

generally disseminated e~-nings claim, additional information including

the number and percentage of prior purchasers known by the franchlsor 1o

have achieved the same or better results, 16 C.F.R. § 436.1(e)(3) - 

15. Pursuant to Section 18(d)(3) of the Act,15 U.S.C. § 57a(d)(3), and 16 C.

§ 436.1, violations of the Franchise Rule constitute unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or

affecting commerce, in violation of Sectior~ 5(a) of the FTC Ac~, 15 U.S.C, § 45(a).

~,qOLATIONS OF THE FRANCHISE RULE

FRANCHISE 



FEB-15-20~5 !5:,~’B US ATT’/ E~ERGLADES P.2.3

material which constitutes a reasonable basis for the claim is available to prospective franchisees;

and/or (3) failing to provide prospective franchisees with an earnings claim document, 

prescribed by the Rule.

CONSUMER INJURY

18. Consv-mers in the United States have suffered and will suffer substantial monetary

loss as a result of the defendants’ violations of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act and the Franchise

Rule. Absent injunctive relief by this Court, the defendants are likely to continue to injure

consumers and harm the public interest.

THIS COURT’S POWER TO GRA_N_T_ RELIEF

19. Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 530o), empowers this Court to pant

injunctive and other ancillary relief, including consumer redress, disgorgement and restitution, to

prevent and remedy any viola6ons of any provision of law enforced by the Federal Yrade

Commission.

20. Section 5(m)(1)(A) of the FTC Act, 15 U,S,C. § 45(m)(1)(A), as 

Section 4 of the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990, 28 U.S.C. § 2461, as

amended, and as implemented by 16 C.F.R. § 1.98(d) (1997), authorizes this Court to award

monetary civil penalties of not more than $11,000 for each violation of the Franchise Rule. The

defendants’ violations of the Rule were committed with tile knowledge required by Section

5(m)(1)(A) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(m)(1)(A).

21. Section 19 of the tzTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 57’0, anthodzes this Court to grant such

relief as the Court finds necessary to redress injury to consumers or other persons resulting from

the defendants’ violations of the Franchise Rule, including the rescission and reformation of
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contracts, and the refund ofmoney.

22. This Court, in the exercise of its equitable jurisdiction, may award ancillary relief

to remedy injury caused b
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Dated: February _]_~, 2005

OF COUNSEL:

EILEEN HA.KRINGTON
Associate Director for M~rketing Practices
FEDERAL TRADE COM]vIISSION

Michael J. Davis
Attorney
Federal Trade Commission
600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W., Rm. 238
Washington, DC 20580
PHONE: 202-326-2458
FAX: 202-326-3395

Respectfully submitted,

FOR THE UI’,rITED STATES OF AMERICA

PETER D. KEISLER, JR..
Assistant Attorney General
Civil Division
U.S. DEPARTMENT Olz JUSTICE

MARCOS D. 3IMENEZ

Assistant~_ljS, Attorney for the
Sotggaem District of Florlda

99 NE 4th Street
Miami, FL 33132
PHONE: (305) 961-9209
FAX: (305) 536-3061
Norman.Hemm.ing2@usdoj.gov

EUGENE M. TI-f[ROLF
Director
Office of Consmner Litigation

suz~~E A.
Trial Attorney
Office of Consumer Litigation
U.S. Department of Justice
P.O. Box 386
Washington, D.C. 20044
PHONE: (202) 307-0052
FAX: (202) 51,1-8742
su.zette.smikle@usdoj.gov


